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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

OVERVIEW

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Computer And
Technologies Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the unaudited interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the six-month ended 30 June 2017.

The Group’s overall revenue slightly dropped by HKS$2.4 million, or
2.0% to HK$118.2 million (2016: HK$120.6 million). The gross profit of
the Group also dropped by HK$5.8 million, or 8.3% to HK$63.7 million
(2016: HK$69.5 million). The drop was primarily due to delay in projects’
completion and increased delivery costs of the Group’s Solutions Services
business!".

On the other hand, the Group recorded an increment in other non-
operating incomes during the reporting period. In particular, the Group’s
Application Software business®? in PRC successfully received HK$3.2
million (2016: HK$0.1 million) tax refund for some of value added tax
("VAT") previously paid®. Besides, the Group’s income tax expense also
reduced by HK$1.7 million, or 50.2% to HK$1.7 million (2016: HK$3.5
million) due to the reduction in the assessable profits and the reversal of
dividend withholding taxes which previously provided.

With the abovementioned, the Group’s consolidated net profit
attributable to shareholders recorded a slight increase of 0.8% to HK$22.8
million (2016: HK$22.6 million). The basic earnings per share increased to
9.42 HK cents (2016: 9.36 HK cents) or improved by 0.6% compared with
same period last year.

In view of sustained healthy financial position and as to celebrate the
Group's 25™ anniversary of its incorporation, the Board recommended the
distributions of an interim dividend of 7 HK cents and a special dividend
of 3 HK cents (2016: an interim dividend of 7 HK cents) per ordinary share.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

eSS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Application Software

Building on existing customer base with recurring business and ongoing
maintenance and service incomes, the Group’s Application Software
business had performed steadily in the first half of 2017.

While the revenue contributions of the Group’s Human Resources
Management Software (“HRMS”) business were stably maintained during
the reporting period, the business continued to expand its customer
base and capture prestigious clients from various industries in the
region, including a global quality top-class drug developer, a leading
manufacturer of infant formula, an Asian-based insurance provider and
an industry leader in premium airport services.

Furthermore, the management is also delighted to announce that the
Group had launched its first version of business intelligence (“Bl") module
for its HRMS. This module will make use of the available human resources
(“HR") data and provide various tools for users to do data mining and
create accurate and meaningful reports timely. The module was also
designed with great user friendliness such that dashboards and charts
with drag-and-drop functions can easily be designed and presented in
the way that users prefer.

The combined profit contributions from the Group’s other software
businesses, including Enterprise Information Management Software
(“EIMS”), Enterprise Procurement Management Software (“EPMS”)
and Enterprise Retail Management Software (“ERMS”) were also stably
maintained during the period under review.

Attributable to market acceptance of the Group’s upgraded software
versions, the sales of on premise software license for both EIMS and ERMS
were improved. The EPMS business is also maintaining its growth trend
in Software as a Service (“SaaS”) revenue with recurring nature. However,
the service revenue recognised by EPMS business was reduced following
the completion of a milestone project in December 2016.

Apart from business performance, the Group’s ERMS product -
ChainStorePlus was endorsed by the industry and awarded the “Best
Business Solution (Product & Service) Award: Certificate of Merit” at the
Hong Kong ICT Awards 2017,
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

S G )

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Solutions and Integration Services

Owing to delay in project completion and increment in cost for delivery
of the Group’s Solutions Services, the revenue and profit contributions of
Solutions and Integration Services business dropped by 4.4% and 35.5%,
respectively.

The Group’s Solutions Business had experienced some delays in project
completions in the reporting period. The current status of these projects
had resumed on tracks and expected to generate more revenues in
the coming months. Despite some hiccups in delivery progress, the
Solutions Services business continued to benefit from its solid foundation
and acquired new multi-million orders from various departments of
the HKSAR Government (the “Government”) including but not limited
to University Grants Committee Secretariat, Marine Department and
Leisure and Cultural Services Department. In July 2017, the Group was
successfully awarded for three categories under the Standing Offer
Agreement for Quality Professional Services 45! (“SOA-QPS4”") by the
Government. Including SOA-QPS4, the Group had been successfully
awarded as a qualified contractor from the Government for four
consecutive times and the latest one would last until July 2021. Apart
from the Government’s engagements, the Group also secured new multi-
year service agreements with Hong Kong Airport Authority for provision
of system implementation, development and maintenance services to
their business applications.

As reported previously, the Group commenced the second 10-year
maintenance contract to support the Customer Care and Billing System
(“CCBS”) for the Water Supplies Department of the Government last
year. Additional costs were incurred in fulfilling certain enhancements
and upgrades on the current CCBS during the reporting period. Despite
the related enhancement works that will incur additional delivery costs
in the first few years of the contract period, the management expected
such costs advancements would pave the way for greater cost savings in
ongoing maintenance services in long term.

During the reporting period, the Group was also honored with the
Certificate of Merit award in the “Best HK Professional Services Brand” ©
category organised by South China Morning Post which is a recognition
of the Group'’s distinguished branding in professional services.

The performance of the Group’s Integration Services business! in China
was maintained in about the same level as comparing to same period last
year.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

eSS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

e-Service and related business

The profit contribution from the e-Service and related business'? dropped
moderately during the reporting period.

Market share as well as revenue of the Group’s GETS"”! business was
slightly better than same period last year. However, profit margin was
dropped due to change in revenue mix with lower contribution from
paper conversion services with higher service fee. While the existing GETS
license lasts until end of 2018, the Group is in the process of bidding the
tender for new GETS license and is prepared to continue to provide the
services from 2019 onwards.

The demand for the Group’s BPO® service was dropped in first half
of 2017. The management is kept searching for new prospects and
consolidating the related resources with the Group’s other business units
in order to provide better cost efficiency.

Investments

The Group's investments segment recorded an increase in profit of 28.4%
to HK$3.4 million (2016: HK$2.6 million). The change was in line with the
increase in fair value gain of the investment properties held.

PROSPECT

Although there are uncertainties affecting the global economy, the Group
remains optimistic about the Asia-Pacific markets backed by moderate
economic growth in PRC. Looking ahead to the second half of 2017, the
Group will continue to keep focus on the development of its software
and solutions services portfolio and look for acquisition opportunities in
the region to accelerate its business growth.

Footnotes:

n The Group’s Solutions and Integration Services business includes (i)
Development Services for the provision of IT solutions implementation
and application software development; (ii) Managed Services for the
provision of IT and related operation/infrastructure outsourcing services;
and (iii) Integration Services for the provision of IT systems and network
infrastructure with related design, implementation and on-going support
services.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EEWRE (E)

Footnotes: (continued)

[2]

[31

(4]

[5]

[6]

71

[8]

The Group’s Application Services business engages in the provision of
application software and e-business services for enterprises including (i)
the provision of enterprise application software with implementation and
ongoing support services for Human Resource Management, Enterprise
Procurement Management, Enterprise Information Management and
Enterprise Retail Management (collectively the “Application Software”); and
(i) the Government Electronic Trading Services (“GETS”), cloud services,
business process outsourcing (“BPO”) services and other related value added
services (collectively the “e-Service and related business”).

Such refund can generally be applied for all invoices issued with 17% VAT
paid for the sales of software license by an enterprise with “double soft
certification” in PRC.

The Hong Kong ICT Awards was established in 2006 with the collaborative
efforts of the industry, academia and the government to promote
outstanding information and communications technology (“ICT")
applications by Hong Kong'’s ICT enterprises in their constant pursuit of
creative and better solutions to meet business and social needs.

The Standing Offer Agreement for Quality Professional Services 4 (SOA-QPS4)
is part of the Government’s IT outsourcing strategy aiming to enlarge the
delivery capacity for IT services and accelerate the delivery of IT solutions to
support the next generation of e-government services. It also aims to provide
business opportunities for the IT sector and helps further the development
of the local IT industry. The total contract value for the scheme, according
to the Government, is estimated to be over HK$1.5 billion over the contract
period of four years till July 2021.

The Group was awarded as one of the selected services providers for SOA-
QPS4 contracts from the HKSAR Government in July 2017. These contracts
will cover three different types of IT professional services, namely (Category
1) pre-implementation & independent programme/project management
services; (Category 3) implementation & combined system development
services; and (Category 4) information security and independent testing
services.

The “Best HK Professional Services Brand” category is one of the 13 streams
under Enterprising Hong Kong Brand Awards 2017 organised by South China
Morning Post which is a celebration and recognition of the most inventive,
ambitious and successful brand building efforts of Hong Kong’'s homegrown
brands.

Since 2004, the Group has been granted a license (the “GETS License”) from
the Government for the provision of front-end Government Electronic
Trading Services for processing certain official trade-related documents. The
Group’s GETS License was renewed in 2009 for operation of additional seven
years and further extended in 2016 for additional two years until the end of
2018.

The Group’s BPO business comprises the provision of services for the
operations and support of specific business functions or processes of
customers.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

eSS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and gross profit

Due to delay in project delivery of the Group’s Solutions Services
business, the Group’s turnover and gross profit for the reporting period
decreased by 2.0% to HK$118.2 million (2016: HK$120.6 million) and 8.3%
to HK$63.7 million (2016: HK$69.5 million), respectively.

Non-operating incomes and gains, net (included other incomes and
gains, net, foreign exchange differences, net and fair value gains,
net)

Non-operating incomes and gains (included other incomes and gains,
net, foreign exchange differences, net, and fair value gains, net) recorded
an increase of 111.3% to HK$7.3 million (2016: HK$3.4 million). The
increase was mainly due to a combination of the following factors.

VAT refund

The Group's Application Software business in PRC successfully received
HK$3.2 million (2016: HKS$0.1 million) refund of VAT in first half of 2017.
The refund was related to the VAT paid for the sales of software license
from 2015 to early 2017.

Interest income

Bank interest income recorded a decrease of 34.1% to HK$1.6 million
(2016: HK$2.4 million) in view of (i) the decrease in cash available for
deposits as some of the fundings had been used for business acquisition;
and (ii) the drop of on-handed Renminbi level had weakened the
contributions as this currency carries relatively high interest yield as
compared with the Group’s other currencies.

Foreign exchange differences, net

The Group recorded foreign exchange gain of HK$3,000 (2016: loss of
HK$0.5 million) as RMB recorded a mild appreciation against HKD in first
half of 2017.

Fair value gain on investment properties, net

The continuous appreciation in the investment properties held by
the Group attributed to the fair value gains of HK$1.4 million on the
investment properties. Moreover, the gain was 188.0% or HK$0.94 million
higher than same period last year.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

S G )

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Expenses

The Group’s overall expenses incurred were basically in line with same
period last year.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense decreased by 50.2% to HK$1.7 million (2016: HKS$3.5
million) compared with same period last year. The change was primarily
due to the decrease of assessable profits which subject to profits tax and
the reversal of dividend withholding taxes provided in prior year.

The tax charge at the Group’s effective tax rate was around 7.0% in 2017,
comparing with 13.3% in 2016. The effective tax rate was lower than the
Hong Kong statutory profits tax rate because several types of onshore
incomes/gain, including dividend, bank interest income and fair value
gains from the revaluation of investment properties, were not subject
to the Hong Kong profits tax. Besides, the rate was further driven down
by the reversal of dividend withholding taxes and the recognition of
deferred tax credit arising from amortisation of other intangible assets.

Net profit

Profit for the period attributable to shareholders increased to HK$22.8
million (2016: HK$22.6 million) while the net profit margin (profit for the
period attributable to shareholders divided by revenue) rose to 19.3%
(2016: 18.8%). The change was due to the net effect of the decrease in
gross profit, the increase in non-operating incomes and gains, net and
the reduction in the income tax expenses.

Non-Current Assets

The Group’s non-current assets as at 30 June 2017 slightly dropped by
0.9% to HK$264.5 million from HK$267.0 million as at 31 December 2016.
The change was mainly arrived after charging of amortisation of other
intangible assets and depreciation of property, plant and equipment
during the period under review.

The Group reviewed and considered no impairment indication to the
carrying value of goodwill during the period under review.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

eSS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Current Assets

The Group's current assets as at 30 June 2017 fell 4.0% to HK$323.8
million (31 December 2016: HK$337.2 million). The change represented
the net results of (i) the decrease in cash and cash equivalents due to the
distribution of 2016 final and special dividends and final payment for
respective acquisition; and (ii) the increase in trade receivables due to
multi-million billings issued to a department of the Government in late
June for some ongoing maintenance services.

The Group maintains strict control over its outstanding trade receivables
and considered that the trade receivables (net of impairment provision)
were all recoverable in the foreseeable future.

Current Liabilities

The Group’s current liabilities as at 30 June 2017 dropped 10.1% to
HK$130.5 million (31 December 2016: HK$145.2 million). The decrease
was primarily due to the payment of HK$14.8 million for an acquisition in
early 2017.

Segment Assets and Liabilities

The decrease of segment assets of Applications Services business was
mainly due to the amortisation of other intangible assets while the
decrease of respective segment liabilities was primarily caused by the
payment of HK$14.8 million for an acquisition in early 2017.

The increase of segment assets of Solutions and Integration Services
business was in line with the increase in the trade receivables of
Solutions Services business as there were multi-million billings issued
to a department of the Government in late June for some ongoing
maintenance services.

The increase of segment liabilities of Solutions and Integration Services
business was due to the recognition of deferred income arising from
various maintenance services to be provided by the Solution Services
business.

Segment assets of Investments business increased due to the
appreciation in value of investment properties held and investments
held under available-for-sale investments and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

Equity

Total equity as at 30 June 2017 was maintained approximate the same
level as compared with 31 December 2016.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

S G )

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives to reduce
exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments and
evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure
that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other
commitments can meet its funding requirements from time to time.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had pledged an investment property with
a fair value of HK$58.0 million (31 December 2016: HK$57.0 million),
listed debt and equity securities of HK$12.8 million (31 December 2016:
HK$12.0 million) and bank balances of HK$20.2 million (31 December
2016: HK$21.9 million) to secure certain general bank facilities including
guarantee/performance bonds facilities granted to the Group in
aggregate of HK$106.8 million (31 December 2016: HK$105.8 million) of
which HK$20.2 million (31 December 2016: HK$19.7 million) have been
utilised as at 30 June 2017.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 30 June 2017, the Group’s bank balances and cash (excluded
pledged bank deposit of HK$20.2 million) was HK$212.1 million (31
December 2016: HK$229.4 million).

All of the Group’s on hand fundings are in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
and US dollars. The Group has not adopted any hedging policies, as these
currencies carry relatively low exchange fluctuation risks. Nevertheless,
the Group had been monitoring the foreign exchange exposures closely
and hedging any significant foreign currency exposure in order to
minimise the exchange risk should the needs arose.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had no bank borrowings (31 December
2016: Nil). The Group’s current ratio representing current assets divided
by current liabilities was 2.5 (31 December 2016: 2.3) and the gearing
ratio, representing total liabilities divided by total assets, was 24.8% (31
December 2016: 26.9%).
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

EEWwE (E

REMUNERATION POLICY AND NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and prevailing market conditions. Apart from basic
salary, discretionary bonus and other incentives are offered to employees
of the Group to reward their performance and contributions.

The remuneration policies adopted for the six months ended 30 June
2017 are consistent with those disclosed in the Group’s 2016 Annual
Report. As at 30 June 2017, the Group employed 329 full time employees
and 8 contract-based employees (31 December 2016: 334 full time
employees and 8 contract-based employees).

As at 30 June 2017, the Company operates a share option scheme and
a share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to the employees who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no significant investments
held as at 30 June 2017.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements regarding
an acquisition of subsidiaries, the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during the period and up to the
date of this interim report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the report, there was no specific plan for material
investments or capital assets as at 30 June 2017.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in the report, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities as at 30 June 2017.

INTERIM AND SPECIAL DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of an interim dividend of 7 HK cents
and a special dividend of 3 HK cents (2016: an interim dividend of 7 HK
cents) per ordinary share for the period ended 30 June 2017.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

S G )

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 29
August, 2017 to Wednesday, 30 August 2017, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify
the interim and special dividends, all transfers of shares accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited,
at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 28 August 2017. The
dividends will be distributed on or about Wednesday, 13 September 2017
to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company on Wednesday, 30 August 2017.

APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board and the management, | would like to express our
sincere thanks to all employees, shareholders, customers and business
partners for their supports to the Group during the reporting period.

By order of the Board
Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited

Ng Cheung Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 August 2017
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BRRmREIRER

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Computer And Technologies
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) presents the unaudited condensed
consolidated interim financial results of the Company and its subsidiaries

M RGEBRBRAR([ARAANESS
(TEFg)BUZNARRRENMBAE (5
WIAKEDBEZE-FT—tFA=THLRX

(collectively, the “Group”) for the six months ended 30 June 2017,
together with the comparative amounts. These condensed consolidated
interim financial results have been reviewed by the Company’s audit

committee.

BAzAREZERAGET M EREER
HEHF - WEHAGETHMBERECK
HARRBZEZESEM -

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT  fEiZGRSIERE X
ORLOSS
For the six months ended 30 June
BEANA=1THIEAREA
2017 2016
—E—+F AN
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REE®R) (REEZ)
Notes HK$’000 HKS’000
BiaE FET FET
REVENUE WA 5 118,193 120,620
Cost of sales and services THE K RISAAR (54,515) (51,168)
Gross profit EF 63,678 69,452
Other income and gains, net H A R F R 5 5,101 2,878
Foreign exchange differences, net X =555 3 (500)
Fair value gains, net: N EWEFRE
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFELESEAR
profit or loss ZHEEE 738 568
Investment properties WEYE 1,440 500
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HMA (16,225) (16,678)
General and administrative expenses —MRITRAX (27,188) (27,111)
Other expenses HEMAx (3,011) (3,011)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBEAT R R 6 24,536 26,098
Income tax expense FriSTiF = 7 (1,727) (3,471)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD BARHEE AEL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS A EA RS F
OF THE PARENT 22,809 22,627
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBRKREEN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY SREF
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 9 HK cents &1 HK cents j& 11l
Basic VN 9.42 9.36
Diluted e 9.39 9.33
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

RS EE W E R

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHILEAEA

2017 2016
—E—t5F ZE—REF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZ) (RE&EZ)
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD ZS HARE A 22,809 22,627
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) HfthZEW A~ (E518)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) REZER - EE2EkA
to be reclassified to profit or (BER)BEHSEZERE
loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINETGRSE A ZEH Z5R
foreign operations 1,816 (1,295)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR BAREE ABGAEE
THE PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO EXELON L
OWNERS OF THE PARENT 24,625 21,332
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

-/~ ~ /_\ A
HERAR S B RS AR &
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
— T
AA=+H +ZH=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RE&ER) (fe=%)
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B MR 10 4,979 5,860
Investment properties wEMHE 11 69,105 67,665
Goodwill e 12 134,485 134,485
Other intangible assets Hin B A 13 48,592 51,603
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE 14 1,880 1,880
Financial assets at fair value through B ESER AR
profit or loss  ZUBEE 16 2,566 2,531
Deferred tax assets RIETIEEE 18 2,921 2,994
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 264,528 267,018
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 565 38
Trade and bills receivables PR 5 R K e L BR 4R 15 50,957 44,388
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTFIE - BZ & M
receivables HoAth el 58 13,061 13,819
Due from contract customers RIS K= PR 8,670 10,092
Financial assets at fair value through B ESER AR
profit or loss ZHBEE 16 10,193 9,490
Tax recoverable ARERTE 8,038 8,038
Pledged bank deposits EIIPRITER 20,195 21,885
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERRSEE 212,113 229,404
Total current assets MBEERE 323,792 337,154
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables, other payables and JERTE SR - Hil
accruals PR BUA K et 3B 17 55,007 79,024
Due to contract customers IS & K P 3 18,349 20,205
Deferred revenue EIEWA 44,565 35,753
Tax payable FEZTIA 12,569 10,234
Total current liabilities mEEERE 130,490 145,216
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 193,302 191,938
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBDARS
LIABILITIES 457,830 458,956
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIERE 18 15,600 17,474
Net assets BEFE 442,230 441,482
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of the BAREE AEEER
parent
Issued capital ?*ﬁﬂx$ 24,419 24,419
Share premium account Hﬁf {8 AR 38,493 38,493
Shares held under the restricted share @?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%”ﬂx@ )
award scheme sTEIF A 2B (2,187) (2,/447)
Other reserves HivfE 381,505 356,810
Proposed final and special dividends 0% R HA N 1 Rl AR 2 - 24,207
Total equity B 442,230 441,482
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Ly i

Attributable to owners of the parent

NG
Other reserves
Aok
Available-
Share- for-sale
based investment Exchange Proposed
payment revaluation Reserve fluctuation Retained final Total
reserve reserve funds reserve profits dividend equity
A
RGRF HERE BE  ELER 72 BERE
i Btk i B et ke EREE
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
7 71 71 71 A7 A1 A1
At1January 2016 2604 2 33 2574 350428 16920 48618
Profit for the period - - - - 2627 - 2627
Other comprehensive loss for the period:
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - - (1,295 - - (1,295)
Total comprehensive income/(loss)
for the period - - - (1,295) 2621 - 2332
Vesting of shares held under the
restricted share award scheme (331) - - - - - -
Share award arrangements 327 - - - - - 37
Final 2015 dividend declared - - - - (15) (16920) (16,935)
At30June 2016 2600 m 733 1219 373,040 - 43330
Attributable to owners of the parent
BRAERARE
Other reserves
EfbiE
Available-
Share- for-sale Proposed
based investment Exchange final and
payment revaluation Reserve fluctuation  Retained special Total
reserve reserve funds reserve profits  dividends equity
aft RIRAH
LUITE HERE i EXRE ] Rihl
e EftRR £ i b ke EREE
HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
FET 77 FE7T FE7 FE7 FET FET
At1January 2017 2,745 m 33 (1,749) 359,615 24,207 441,482
Profit for the period - - - - 22,809 - 22,809
Other comprehensive income
for the period:
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - - 1816 - - 1,816
Total comprehensive income for
the period - - - 1,816 22,809 - 24,625
Vesting of shares held under the
restricted share award scheme (260) - - - - - -
Share award arrangements 350 - - - - - 350
Transferred from retained profits - - 13 - (13) - -
Final and special 2016 dividends
declared - - - - (20) (24,207) (24227)
At30June 2017 2,835 1 46 67 382,391 - A0
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BRGERERER

For the six months ended 30 June

HEAA=tTHIELAEA

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBHEZR) (CREEEZ)
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
e FET FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHZRENE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BRA A 5 24,536 26,098
Adjustments for: KPR
Bank interest income IRITHBHA 5 (1,594) (2,417)
Dividend income from listed A ZIREMA
investments 5 (314) (322)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWZE - ME REEE
plant and equipment B EE 5 26 -
Fair value gains, net: NFEWEFEE -
Financial assets at fair value through BATELERAR Y
profit or loss WEEE (738) (568)
Investment properties WEME (1,440) (500)
Depreciation e 6 1,431 1,400
Impairment of trade receivables JEUE 5 BRFORE 6 651 134
Reversal of impairment of trade B EWE SERFORE
receivables 6 (34) (105)
Reversal of impairment of an amount RO —IBEIKENEFPR
due from a contract customer TERE - (4)
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hfh A & iy 6 3,011 3,011
Equity-settled share-based payment & #e 4 PARR () 2SR 2
expense 6 350 327
25,885 27,054
Increase in inventories FEEM (527) (283)
Increase in trade and bills receivables FEWE 5 IR AR K FE M SR SR 38 N (7,186) (5.836)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERFIR « e LHEM
deposits and other receivables FEMGRIER L, ($0) 758 (1,859)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due B A MR FZRERD
from contract customers (1) 1,422 (5.144)
Decrease in trade payables, other JERTE SHERFR - H AR
payables and accruals 18 & FEST RIER (9,222) (11,124)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to FEE R F BN,
contract customers CRA) (1,856) 8,511
Increase/(decrease) in deferred revenue  JEFEU AIE AN, (Gt 2>) 8,812 (6,740)
Cash generated from operations KEEBMERE 18,086 4,579
Hong Kong profits tax paid EEEBNEN - (1,645)
Overseas taxes paid BEUEIINRIR (1,114) (1,840)
Net cash flows from operating activities A& & EEFTFIR G REF5E 16,972 1,094
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

BRGRE RS RERE)

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHIEAEA

2017 2016
—EB—tHF —E—RF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RE&ER) (CREgEEZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Net cash flows from operating activities LR FSIR e REFR 16,972 1,094
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZBHZHERE
Bank interest received BUERTTHI B 1,594 2,417
Dividends received from listed investments B LR &I E 314 322
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEMHE  WERRBER
equipment (553) (550)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B BT B 2 A - (71,012)
Payment of acquisition consideration payable 7/ JE{S Y EE (B (14,795) (3,442)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME - BERRHER
plant and equipment S 50R 6 14
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EERIRITERUR 1,690 5,562
Decrease in non-pledged bank deposits with {8 [RE B BB ={EA 2
original maturity of more than three months AR OB D
when acquired 44,920 7,394
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing WEEEE(FrA)ES
activities MEFRR 33,176 (59,295)
CASH FLOWS USED IN A FINANCING —HREERAZRERE
ACTIVITY
Dividends paid B E (24,227) (16,935)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND BERZEFREEEZEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS (R ) F8 25,921 (75,136)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of Bz ReMERREEE
period 170,393 304,726
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net b R ) 2 B FRR 1,708 (1,233)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATEND OF IR RERERREEE
PERIOD 198,022 228,357
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERERREEESBRDINT
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the HRRfRE M BARR KRR CEH S
condensed consolidated statement of RERREEE
financial position 212,113 248,357
Non-pledged time deposits with original W REISH BB =EA 2
maturity of more than three months when AT BT 3K
acquired (14,091) (20,000)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BRGERESRERN T
condensed consolidated statement of cash RekERAREAE
flows 198,022 228,357
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3.1

Notes to Financial Statements

B R M RE

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE = —+tF X A=+ HIL/NEA

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Level 10, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

During the period, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

. provision of enterprise applications software and related
services, business process outsourcing, e-business, and related
maintenance services;

. provision of system and network integration, information
technology (“IT") solutions development and implementation,
and related maintenance services; and

. property and treasury investments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
information of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2017 has
been prepared in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS")
34 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA").

The unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
information does not include all the information and disclosures
required in the annual financial statements, and should be read in
conjunction with the Group’s annual financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial information
are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Group’s
annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016, except for the adoption of the following revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which also included
HKASs and Interpretations) that affect the Group and are adopted
for the first time for the current period’s financial statements.

3.1
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR MIE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE T —+F /S A=+ H1E/NEA

3.2

3.3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for

the first time for the current period'’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

Amendment to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to HKAS 12

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

The adoption of the above new and revised standards has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts’
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers’

Leases?

Transfers of Investment Property'

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'

2014-2016 Cycle
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PATSIRARIMEE (R

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE = —+tF X A=+ HIL/NEA

3.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of the new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yet
in a position to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would
have a significant impact on the Group's result of operations and
financial position.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three reportable
operating segments as follows:

(@) the application services segment that primarily engages in
the provision of enterprise applications software and related
operation outsourcing, business process outsourcing and
e-business, and related maintenance services;

(b) the integration and solutions services segment that
primarily engages in the sales of computer networks and
system platforms, and the provision of system and network
integration, IT solutions development and implementation,
and related maintenance services; and

(c) the investments segment that primarily engages in various
types of investing activities including, inter alia, property
investment for rental income and/or for capital appreciation
and treasury investment in securities for dividend income and
interest income and/or for capital appreciation.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit
before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before
tax except that unallocated interest income, unallocated other
income and gains, net, unallocated foreign exchange differences,
net, corporate and other unallocated depreciation, corporate and
other unallocated expenses are excluded from such measurement.

3.3 CHEMERRERZEBMHR
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BATS R ML (AE)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 & Z =%

—tEFRA=THLEAREA

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, RESHER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable, DEBEETBRRBELCHIBEE - ARE
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and other WIE - BEEARITER  BekFERR
unallocated head office and corporate assets as these assets are SEE  UREMRIRALREEE

managed on a group basis.

B REREEEENEER—EIE -

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and SHEETEREEEHE - REHREE
other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these BERHEMASEBIREEEE  RA
liabilities are managed on a group basis. RILESEENEESR—EIE -

There were no material intersegment sales and transfers during the B AT R BT A R E K B 2
current and prior period. BEREE -

(a)

Operating segments

Integration and
Application Services Solutions Services Investments Total
L SRRFRRHH R& 48
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

el e S i e i e S
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REgR) (RN (REEK)  (REED)  (REEK)  (REED)  (REER)  (REED)
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FE7 AT FE7 A1 FE7 T FE7 AT

Segment revenue: BN
Sales to external customers  HETINREF
Otherincome and gains, net  EMA R 58

Total @t
Segment results A
Reconciliation: HE -

Unallocated interestincome ~ RAEFIS U

Unallocated foreign exchange #AEEH ZE %8
differences, net

Corporate and other CERERAAENE
unallocated depreciation

Corporate and other PEREMARAERR
unallocated expenses

Profit before tax iyl

69,584 69,814 47,346 49513 1,263 1293 118,193 120,620¢

3,219 139 (26) (60) 314 382 3,507" 461"
72,803 69,953 47,320 49453 1577 1675 121,700 121,081
25,851 22,168 8319 12894 3,364 2619 37,534 37,681

1,594" 7

3 (500)

(934) (892)

(13,661) (12,608)

24,536 26,098
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 &= =%

EATS AR ML (AE)

—tFRA=THIEREA

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFBERE)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) REDI(E)
Integration and
Application Services Solutions Services Investments Total
BRI LIV S ES S k& ag
30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31 December 30June 31 December
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tE ZEE ZE-tE ZEF ZE-tE R 5F CE-tE ZTAF
y: T2 y: T2 y: T2 y: 2R
=tB  =1-8 =tB =18 =t =t-H =t =1-A
(Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited)  (Unaudited) (Audited) ~ (Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEH)  (@ER)  (REBK)  (FE%)  (REER)  (BER)  (REER)  (EER)
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS000
FEr TET FEr FET FEr &7 FEr AT
Segment assets AHEE 208,125 209,355 47,733 43712 84,657 82,534 340,515 335,601
Reconciliation: HE:
Corporate and other PERAMAIEAE
unallocated assets 247,805 268,571
Totalassets AELE 588,320 604,172
Segment liabilities S8R 80,734 96,780 33,753 30,741 921 834 115,408 128,355
Reconciliation: 5%
Corporate and other CERAMKARAR
unallocated liabilities 30,682 34335
Totalliabilites BiEE% 146,090 162690
* This represents the consolidated revenue of HK$118,193,000 (2016: *  EREHLGEEBEm X ZHES KA
HKS$120,620,000) in the condensed consolidated statement of profit 118,193,000 & ;T ( — & — X F
orloss. 120,620,000;87T) °
A These comprise the consolidated other income and gains, net, of A BB GAEEREZAZAEEAM

HKS5,101,000 (2016: HKS2,878,000) in the condensed consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

-

TERHRE | B RGEEREARA

WA Rl 255 56 45,101,000 (—F
— N 2,878,0005%T) °




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BATS R ML (AE)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE T —+F /S A=+ H1E/NEA

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

4. REDHER(H)

(CONTINUED)
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) REDI(E)
Integration and
Application Services Solutions Services Investments Total
EREH SRRBASERS k% &8
2017 216 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
E-tE ZEE 0 ZE-tR R ZE-tE B ZEtE R
(Unaudited) ~ (Unaudited) ~ (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
(REgh)  (REER)  (REER)  (REER)  (REBR)  (REsn)  (REER)  (REsw)
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKks'000
7T FAT FE1 7T 7 AT 71 FET
Other segment information: ~ Eft240&# :
Net fairvalue gains on investment B EATENE
properties FE - - - - 1,440 500 1,440 500
Netfairvalue gainson financial ~ RATELEGAEL
assetsatfarvaluethough — BIEEEATENE
profitorloss FE - - - - 738 568 738 568
Amortisation of otherintangible Lt EF £ R
assets 30m 30m - - - - 3,0M 30M
Depreciation e 3 281 157 210 17 17 497 508
Corporate andother unallocated % Rt EE
depreciation 934 892
1,431 1400
Impaimment losses recognised/  INERRA BER
(reversed) in the condensed 2/ (BE)Z
consolidated statement of HEEETE
profit or loss, net* 617 9 - o] - - 617 25
Capital expenditure™ ERRR> 126 55314 12 264 - - 138 55,578
Corporate and other unallocated ~ AEREHFHTER
capital expenditure 5 45 67
553 55,645

* Including impairment losses recognised in the condensed
consolidated statement of profit or loss attributable to the
application services segment of HK$651,000 (2016: HKS134,000)
and impairment losses reversed in the condensed consolidated
statement of profit or loss attributable to the application services
segment and the integration and solutions services segment
of HK$34,000 (2016: HKS105,000) and nil (2016: HK$4,000),

respectively.

**  Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment, including property, plant and equipment and other
intangible assets from the acquisition of subsidiaries.

*%

EIER B 4R & 1825 X BT HERR K B JE
AR 7% 53 80,2 ) 18 5 18 #5651,000,8 7T
(=ZF—VF : 134,000/ ) & REG B
Ar B 1875 K B 3K B FE IR 75 7 85 R £
S RAFHR T RS 52 (B 15 53 5
434,000/ 7T (= F—7N4F : 105,000/%
TL)RE(ZF—NF : 4,000;87T) °

BEAXFX BIEYF - BERRERE
BEREHKENE R AIEEZ YR - B

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited | Interim Report 2017



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 EZ =%

EATS AR ML (AE)

—tFRA=THIEREA

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
(b) Geographical information (b) HEER
(i) Revenue from external customers (i) KEIIREEFZHKA
Hong Kong
and other
countries/regions Mainland China Total
EEREMER HE HEIA w“m
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE—tf —TF ZB-tf ZTF ZZE-tF —TF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REFR) (REBR) (REER) (REER) (REER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue: AHWA

Sales to external customers  $HE FHREP 88,630 95,089 29,563 25,531 118,193 120,620
The revenue information is based on the locations of the WAB R TARFE T A%

customers. 4E o

(ii) Non-current assets (i) FRBEE

30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
ARA=+H +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBEZR) (EZ)
HKS’000 HKS$000
FET FET
Hong Kong ' 110,748 114,554
Mainland China R A 3, 146,413 145,059
257,161 259,613

(c)

The non-current asset information is based on the
locations of assets and excludes financial instruments and
deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

Revenues from an external customer individually amounting
to 10% or more of the Group's total revenue:

For the period ended 30 June 2017, revenue from a major
customer of HK$30,893,000 was derived from the application
services segment and the integration and solutions services
segment.

For the period ended 30 June 2016, revenue from a major
customer of HK$30,485,000 was derived from the integration
and solutions services segment.

(c)

ERBEEE R TIREEME

25 - FRWARET R T

BRIRERIBEE ©
FEEFZER

KE—BINARE Z WA ERME AR
EBEEITA10% A L

BHEe—_ZT—+tFA=1THIH
B XQ HZEBREF WAL
30,893,000/ 87T + B EEIIK B
& A AR TS 5 SR AN S AR I R R 7 22 AR
TEDER ©

Bz XRFNA=1THBIH
B RBE—ZITERFPZKAL
m%wm%ﬁ ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%@

-

TERHRE | B RREEREARAR




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR MIE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE T —+F /S A=+ H1E/NEA

5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5.

Revenue represents the aggregate of the invoiced value of
goods sold, net of trade discounts, returns and business tax,
where applicable; fees earned from the provision of enterprise
applications software, related operation outsourcing, business
process outsourcing, e-business, system and network integration,
IT solutions development and implementation and related services;
fees earned from the provision of maintenance services; gross rental
income earned from investment properties; and interest income
earned from treasury investments during the period.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is as follows:

WA - H AW AR a8

WASEARHIRHE & & o 2 HEEAREN
BREZIN  REMREEH(WER) :
RHCEEAEMS  HAXRKIN - X
Bmigs# - BEFE SR - R A
MEMIRT - BABBEBRTRERR
it AR ARG ER : RHR
BERBRIMCER  REMERRZHAE
AR URBERRE R ZF
BA o

WA~ B A R F DT

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHIEAEAR

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RE&ER) (RE&EZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FEr
Revenue PN
Provision of enterprise applications software F2fE 1> 5 & S L ERE & &8
and related operation outsourcing, INAL S ETERAZINIRETE S
business process outsourcing and PR 7% LA N2 HE AR 2 AR 7%
e-business, and related maintenance
services 69,584 69,814
Sales of computer networks and system HEBREBRESRTS  URIE
platforms, and the provision of system HEFRBEEXNRY - BB
and network integration, IT solutions FERRT RER KB KLAEE
development and implementation, and RER
related maintenance services 47,346 49,513
Gross rental income from investment WEYE 2 M WA R R ERK
properties and interest income from &2 FBWA
treasury investments 1,263 1,293
118,193 120,620
Other income and gains, net Hitt A R Wz F88
Tax refund received R 3,218 139
Bank interest income HRITHLEWA 1,594 2,417
Dividend income from listed investments ~ _E T & 7 & BULA 314 322
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant  HE¥Z - BE N EEEB
and equipment ) iti=| (26) -
Others Efth 1 -
5,101 2,878
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

EATS AR ML (AE)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE = —+tF X A=+ HIL/NEA

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6.

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BRBE AT R

AEEZBHRADANENSR,GIA)T
5% 1A -

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=+THLEAEAR

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RE&ER) (RE&EZ)

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FEr

Cost of inventories sold EHEFERAN 27,088 21,245
Cost of services provided? BRHRBK A 27,419 29,911
Depreciation” e 1,431 1,400
Amortisation of other intangible assets** HAh A & i 3,011 3,011

Minimum lease payments under operating RBLEERE 2 HEHES A

leases 3,331 3,344
Equity-settled share-based payment expense A% #E 45 & LARS 15 7 1+ B 52 350 327
Impairment of trade receivables FEWE 5 RFORE 651 134
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables % [EfEUE ZRFRE (34) (105)

*%

Inclusive of research and development cost for application software
products of HK$4,087,000 (2016: HK$5,013,000).

Depreciation for the period of HKS8,000 (2016: HK$12,000) is included
in “Cost of sales and services” on the face of the condensed consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Amortisation of other intangible assets for the period of HK$3,011,000
(2016: HKS3,011,000) is included in “Other Expenses” on the face of the
condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss.

*%

BT B fE 1 E BT R BIFHA A
4,087,000/ 7T (= F— 74 : 5,013,000
Br) e

BT E8,000/8 7T (—F—7N4F 12,000
BIT )N B HRr e Bk 2 [ ERIR
B -

B E A EE# £53,011,000,8 T
(ZF— N4 : 3011,00057T) WA L5
Bitra 1Bamk 2 [ BB A -

R FHHRE | RS RGEEER AR




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BATS R ML (AE)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE T —+F /S A=+ H1E/NEA

7. INCOME TAX

L4 operates.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (six
months ended 30 June 2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the period. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group

7. Fiis®i

EEFNEHIBRBEAPEAREEEE
ZAETERTE N E165%(HET
—NERAZTHIEAMEA - 16.5%) 1
- Bttt RERTER 2 HIETY
BEAEBKCLERHTERR, A
RiZEANETE -

For the six months ended 30 June

BEANA=tTHILEAER

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REFER) (REgEZ)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FEr
Current - Hong Kong BNER— &/
Charge for the period HIAX T 2,433 3,900
Overprovision in prior years TFE LR - (20)
Current - Elsewhere BVEA— E At i [
Charge for the period HAX T 744 306
Overprovision in prior years TFELREE (8) -
Deferred IR (1,442) (715)
Total tax charge for the period HATIES HAEEE 1,727 3,471
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PATSIRARIMEE (R

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE = —+tF X A=+ HIL/NEA

8. DIVIDENDS

a. Subsequent to the end of the interim period, the Board has
determined that an interim dividend of 7 HK cents and a
special dividend of 3 HK cents (2016: an interim dividend of
7 HK cents) in cash per ordinary share should be paid to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear in the
Register of Members on Wednesday, 30 August 2017.

b.  Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, approved
and paid during the interim period.

IR

a. RPHBHGEERR EFQRE
MR -_ZE—tFN\A=TH(EH
=) RIIBREMZARE ERBRK
R AR @Ik IR B &R 778
IR S ER3EM( =T —X
F : PEIRR BT -

b. A BF E A 3 R AP HAEAE
IR Z B, o

For the six months ended 30 June

BEAA=tHLEAER

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RE&ER) (RE&EZ)

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FEr
Final and special dividends in respect of the  JE#t)fE AP EAEART IR (5
previous financial year, approved and paid B _F{EEEFE 2 KB
during the interim period of HK$0.10 R Rl B8 I E B A%0.10

(2016: final dividend of HK$0.07) AIT(ZT—RE : XY

per ordinary share 1% £.0.077%7T) 24,420 17,094
Less: Dividends for shares held under the JB - IR A B A RS A7
Company's restricted share award HENETEISA 2kt

scheme PSS (193) (159)

24,227 16,935

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 242,137,734 (2016: 241,780,462) in issue during the period, as
adjusted to exclude the shares held under the restricted share
award scheme of the Company.

—E RS | RSB ARA

BAREBRRRREESREFN

EREARFEBENIRESAREER
MR AR F R AEBITER
A% hn#E 7 15 £0242,137,734 % ( —ZF — X
F 1 241,780,4620% )51 E  WHLHIBRALA
RIE MR IR S2ERT 88 T AT IR 1E




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BATS R ML (AE)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE T —+F /S A=+ H1E/NEA

9. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 9.

BRAEERRRELERER

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
(CONTINUED)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the period, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to
have been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares granted under
the share option scheme of the Company and the deemed vesting
of all dilutive restricted shares of the Company awarded under the
restricted share award scheme of the Company into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

Earnings

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.

(&)

BREERNSRIRES AT EK
BREEARERNGE - SHEAAZ
EARINEFESB AT EEREREF
FIRZHACHITEBRREE  UE
SRR T REA QR B 8IR
ZEEBETBRRRAEITREIL R
B AR ARIR AR 2 R B R HI A 17 22 B st
B 2 FrA B A IR I A0 1
BIFRER - ARACIREET A BT
ZE BRI

ST SRR A R AR BRI

87

SREAREERF R ATERR
R i IS o

Number of shares

RAEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REeEZ)
Shares &y
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5 & SR EAZFIATAHAA
in issue during the period used in the basic BB TE AR T
earnings per share calculation 242,137,734 241,780,462
Effect of dilution — weighted average number #5857 2 — BRI FIIEL -
of ordinary shares:
Restricted shares awarded under the RIBAR QB F R SR 228
Company's restricted share award scheme FTEIRE 2 ARSI G 729,420 765,008
242,867,154 242,545,470
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ERRMEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE = —+tF X A=+ HIL/NEA

10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

10. 9% - BERRE

30 June 31 December

2017 2016

—E—+tF AN

AR=tH +=A=t—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(RE&ER) (Fe&E%)

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Net carrying amount, at 1 January R—H—B - REFE 5,860 6,919
Additions NE 553 1,462
Disposals (net book value) HE (BREE) (32) (66)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WHEHT B A 7] - 479
Depreciation provided during the period/year 2§,/ & R{T & 5 (1,431) (2,870)
Exchange realignment b 3 8 B 29 (64)

Net carrying amount, at 30 June/31 December W/ XA=+H,+=A
=t+—R  EE*E 4,979 5,860
11. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 1. BEy

30June 31 December

2017 2016

—E—tF —FRF

AA=+RA +ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(RIBERK) (F&EZ)

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—A  REEAE 67,665 66,665
Net gains from fair value adjustments NV EFRR 2 W F 1,440 1,000

Carrying amount, at 30 June/31 December WARA=Z+H,/+=A
=+—H kEE 69,105 67,665
B FREHRRE | M ASREEARAR]




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR MIE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE T —+F /S A=+ H1E/NEA

12.

13.

GOODWILL 12. B8
HKS'000
FET
At 31 December 2016 R=B—XRE+=HA=+—H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2016 RIE—RE—-A-BRAKRKEE 44,575
Acquisition of subsidiaries g )= pNG 89,910
Carrying amount at 31 December 2016 RZEBE-—RET-_A=+—HAKEAE 134,485
At 30 June 2017 R=ZB—tFXA=1H
Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2017 and RZE—tF—-A—BR_ZT—+tF
30 June 2017 NA=1TBERAREEE 134,485
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13. HiWEBREEE
Deferred
development Customer
costs relationships Software Total
BB EFB% uH met
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
30 June 2017 —E-tFRA=TH
Cost at 1 January 2017, RZZ—tF—H—-Hz
net of accumulated amortisation PAS - HIBR RETHEESE &2
and impairment BB - 12,290 39,313 51,603
Amortisation provided during the I ERFE SR
period - (827) (2,184) (3,011)
At 30 June 2017 RZZE—+FXA=TH - 11,463 37,129 48,592
At 30 June 2017 RZZE—+FXA=1H
Cost B 13,026 14,767 43,681 71,474
Accumulated amortisation and ZEHEE IR E
impairment (13,026) (3,304) (6,552) (22,882)
Net carrying amount REFE - 11,463 37,129 48,592
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ERRMEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE = —+tF X A=+ HIL/NEA

13. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13. Hitv B EE (&)
Deferred
development Customer
costs  relationships Software Total
EIEFREBE KA RREBF E(Ls 4
HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
31 December 2016 —E-XRE+=A
=t+—H
Cost at 1 January 2016, RZZE—R"F—H—H
net of accumulated amortisation 2R - IR 2t
and impairment HEREE - 6,343 - 6,343
Acquisition of subsidiaries LG LIEYNG] - 7,603 43,681 51,284
Amortisation provided during AR E
the year - (1,656) (4,368) (6,024)
At 31 December 2016 RZT—RF+=H
=+—H - 12,290 39,313 51,603
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+H
=+—H
Cost D% 13,026 14,767 43,681 71,474
Accumulated amortisation and BFHEEENORE
impairment (13,026) (2,477) (4,368) (19,871)
Net carrying amount BREFE - 12,290 39,313 51,603
14. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 14. AHHERE
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+F AN
~A=+H +=-A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (&&iz)
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FAETT FEIT
Club membership debenture, at fair value BAFEFEZSHgEES 1,880 1,880
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR MIE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE T —+F /S A=+ H1E/NEA

15. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
provisions, is as follows:

15. BERE SRR REVRRE

RERPELEER - BREZFERERLIE
U E ki 3 22 B HAYY SR N B4 2 BR L
DT ¢

30 June 31 December

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE—RF

AA=+A +ZH=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REBFEZR) (fe=:Z)

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FEIT

Within 1 month —REAR 37,067 29,174
1 to 3 months —E={@A 10,904 9,521
4 to 6 months rZE N {E A 1,847 5,137
7 to 12 months =+ A 1,139 556
50,957 44,388

For system integration projects and the provision of maintenance
services and software development services, the Group’s trading
terms with its customers vary from contract to contract or
depending on the specific arrangements with individual customers,
and may include cash on delivery, advance payment and on credit.
For those customers who trade on credit, the overall credit period
is generally within 90 days, except for certain projects with longer
implementation schedules where the period may extend beyond
90 days, or may be extended for major or specific customers. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding trade
receivables and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances. Trade and bills receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

SR G EAIE B A RIRHIRE IS M X
HRERBMNE - ARE X ERA
FEMERIE H AR T RER TP 2 FR%
BEME - AIRE R BRI - BEMNK
RBRR - LA FARRIE LTS 2
EFPME  BREEH-—HRTZR0
X ERETEEREINKRE  AEE
HiR[IE R EHBBI0K » sk pi = Bk
ERFEREEH - AEE—HBRE
PEREEZRKEZERR  SREE
BT MEMBIFIRAR - AEEY
B FESE A TMERRSRELE
MIEEEEEE - BIRE SRR NEK
SEAL S -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PATSIRARIMEE (R

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE = —+tF X A=+ HIL/NEA

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 16. RATFEREBESARZUKEE
PROFIT ORLOSS
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+tF BT
ARA=+H +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZR) (eEZ)
HKS’000 HKS$000
FET FET
Debt investment, at market value BMEFE 2 —HEBERE 2,566 2,531
Listed equity investments, at market value & {EHE 2 FHRARE 10,193 9,490
12,759 12,021
Portion classified as current assets DEARBEESD (10,193) (9,490)
Portion classified as non-current assets DERIEREBEELLD 2,566 2,531
The debt investment was designated upon initial recognition as ENEBRIEE NRIEEEE RS B IR iE
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss as it is managed BRIEIZNFEEEEE LT HERE

17.

and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the investment is provided internally on that
basis to the Group’s key management personnel.

The listed equity investments were all included under current assets
at 30 June 2017 and 31 December 2016 and were classified as held

for trading.

BN IR ER R EIEE BB A HELE
BARZUBEE  MABZEFREZ
BHNRABEEERAREZ T EEE
ABREBLEdt -

EHRAREDF AR T —tFRA
=tER-ZFE-ARFt-A=t+—B2
RBEE  UDBERFHEEE -

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 17. EHEZERN -  HENRKIER
ACCRUALS PESHFRIE
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
ANAB=+H +=ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fe==:Z)
HK$’000 HKS$000
FET FET
Trade payables BB SRR 17,925 21,246
Other payables HAb B FRIA 27,328 27,425
Accruals FEST IR 9,754 15,558
Consideration payable on acquisition of BB B A E) 2 SR E
subsidiaries = 14,795
55,007 79,024
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR MIE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE T —+F /S A=+ H1E/NEA

17. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

18.

ACCRUALS (CONTINUED)

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting

17. ENEZRM - EtbBRARER

FERH IR ()

RBERREER  BNESRFIZE

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: ZEHZREDWTAOT ¢
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E-tF B AF
AA=+tH +ZHA=t+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REFER) (eE=Z)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 month —@EAR 16,453 17,524
1 to 3 months —ZE=1{EA 1,060 2,598
4to 6 months oz <& A 52 184
Over 6 months NER A E 360 940
17,925 21,246
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally FENESERI S - —A%i%30KH)

settled on 30-day terms.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

period are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

RS °

18. IEIER1E

EERAEE

HIR - RERREERBEZEEHNT -

2017
—E—tF
Temporary

differences of
deferred
revenue
BEWA Z
TRERH
HK$’000
FET

At 1 January 2017

Deferred tax charged to the condensed consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the period

Exchange differences

At 30 June 2017

R-—E—+F—H—H
HRNMK SRS A BER 2B IE

PE N ERR

R-ZE—tFRA=1H

2,994

(152)
79

2,921
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ERRMEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE = —+tF X A=+ HIL/NEA

18. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities

18. EAEHLIE (&)
EEBIRAE

2017
—F-tF

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

Revaluation acquisition of
of properties  subsidiaries
W

HEARZ

WEER ATERE
HK$'000 HK$'000

Withholding

taxes Total

R )

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tF-HA—-H 1,378 12,438 3,658 17,474
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the el YAG PNt
condensed consolidated statement Bak JEENE
of profit or loss during the period 110 (715) (989) (1,594)
Tax paid [RANEEE - - (280) (280)
At30 June 2017 RZE—+F A=tH 1,488 11,723 2,389 15,600
Deferred tax assets EEHRIBEE
2016
T —REF
Temporary
differences of
deferred
revenue
BIEWAZ
TRERE
HKS'000
FET
At 1 January 2016 MRZZE—XRF—HA—H -
Acquisition from subsidiaries WEE BT /& A 7 3,018
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FRFFASLEBRR ZEERHIE
statement of profit or loss during the year 153
Exchange differences EHZER (177)
At 31 December 2016 RZZB—RF+-R=+—H 2,994

—E RS | RSB ARA




Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR MIE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE T —+F /S A=+ H1E/NEA

18. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

18. EAEHIE ()

Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE
2016
ZERF
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Revaluation  acquisitionof ~ Withholding
of properties subsidiaries taxes Total
i
()= v
mEER  ATERAR EMH @5t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2016 WZE—F—-HA—H 1378 1,047 496 2,921
Acquisition from subsidiaries WEEHTB AR - 12,821 3,658 16,479
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated ~ F R AGAEBRER ZETHE
statement of profit or loss during the year - (1,430 (40) (1,470)
Tax paid BATHIE - - (467) (467)
Exchange differences ERER - - 11 1
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE+ZA=1—H 1,378 12,438 3,658 17474
19. BUSINESS COMBINATION 19. ¥#KS 3

In prior year, the Group acquired the entire equity interest in
Platinum China Limited (“PCL"). PCL and its subsidiary (collectively
“Platinum”) are engaged in the provision of HRM solutions
specifically designed to meet the business and regulatory
requirements in the PRC. The Group has acquired Platinum to
further expand its application services business and to extend the
existing product offering. The purchase consideration, including the
Cash Adjustment (as defined in the announcement of the Company
dated 21 December 2015), of approximately HK$147,002,000 for the
acquisition was payable in five tranches in form of cash.

W EF 0 AN & B ULEE Platinum China
Limited ([ PCLJ) 2 BB AN #E 2 ° PCL I
HBAR (SEMne DR EBRHERES
FEFRSTEREEREMZITZA
NERERRRAAER - WHNSBEASE
Eift — T IRAHERRGES MIGRR
EEMBEER WHE 2 BERE(R
BE2HAZ)(EERARABHA=
TE—REF+-_A-+—HZAH)HA
147,002,000/ 7T + MIR& W H AHE AT -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PATSIRARIMEE (R

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE = —+tF X A=+ HIL/NEA

19. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Platinum as

19. RBE 6t (&)
HENWBE 2 THAEERABZA

at the date of acquisition were as follows: EEMT
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
Wig
AFEER
HKS'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MEE 479
Cash and bank balances W& RIRTTEER 46,032
Trade receivables JEWE S IRFK 7,144
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TENFRIA © e REAEWGRIA 1,797
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 3,018
Other payables and accruals E b SRIA R IERT SR (13,781)
Deferred revenue BEIEWA (9,620)
Due to contract customers ERNEHEFHIAE (11,331)
Tax payable JERIARIE (1,451)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIBEAE (3,658)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATERE 2 A #REE FERRE 18,629
Goodwill on acquisition W28 89,910
Other intangible assets arising from the acquisition WEEPRIS 2 B LB E 51,284
Deferred tax liabilities arising from the acquisition WEEPRIS 2 RIERIIEE & (12,821)
Total cost of the business combination E S I W 147,002

Satisfied by: AT

Cash BRE 132,207
Acquisition consideration payable FERUEERE 14,795
Total cost of the business combination EEE P2 B 147,002

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables
as at the date of acquisition amounted to HK$7,144,000 and
HK$ 1,797,000, respectively. The gross contractual amounts of
trade receivables and other receivables were HK$11,815,000
and HK$1,797,000 respectively, of which trade receivables of
HK$4,671,000 were expected to be uncollectible.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$955,000 for this
acquisition. These transaction costs had been expensed and were
included in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Included in the goodwill of HK89,910,000 recognised above was
the value of expected synergies arising from combining operations
of the Group and Platinum. None of the goodwill recognised was
expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

RWEREZEWE ZBER L EME
W sk 18 A 1B 5 Bl £ 7,144,000%8 7T &
1,797,000 7T © FEINE SRR R KA fE
WHIAZ B E& K289 5/511,815,00075
JTK%1,797,0007 7T + AR EWE F AR
4,671,00078 L FEEAR AT Yk ] -

752 (3] 9k otk 1B A B 7 A 22 5 A K 955,000
BT - RERZHKNAE W REREIE
mR—MEITHRAIAIER -

3l B RER 2 752289,910,00078 T B FE A
EEAEEHEAS Z EBMELTEID
FIMREE - CHERZEETEHRE TR
FERINFTSFERIIE -
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Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE T —+F /S A=+ H1E/NEA

19. BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of
subsidiaries in the prior year was as follows:

19. E#E 6t (F)

EERHBBEHBARZ R RESH
o

HKS$'000

FHETT

Cash consideration paid ERRERE (132,207)

Cash and bank balances acquired BIEEIR & RIRITERR 46,032
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in T ARBEEBFIERESRECLREN

cash flows from investing activities ERBRSEERL FHE (86,175)

Since the acquisition, the Platinum contributed HK$46,394,000 to
the Group’s revenue and HK$11,822,000 to the consolidated profit
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the prior year,
the revenue and the profit of the Group for the prior year would
have been HK$258,862,000 and HK$48,243,000, respectively.

20. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(@) Aslessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 11) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
terms ranging from one to two years. The terms of the leases
generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At 30 June 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants falling due as follows:

BWEAR  fAeREBE_Z—~F
T A=+ —HLEFEMAERZ &
B R AR A F D Bl B B146,394,00078 7T &
11,822,00078 7T ©

HEHEREFTEK  EFFELREE
Z WA B ) & 9 Bl 258,862,000 7T
248,243,000/ 7T °

20. KEHELZH
(a) EBHEMEA

AEBERBEEEHELHHEERR
BYE(EN)  BEZHBNF
—EMFENIEF c MEHK—RER
HEPXMREZRS  XAREBER
BITTAEHABEE -

R-ZTF—tFRA=1H  £A&HE
RIBEEBEPRFN T MRER
Z AR EHE MmN AR ER

ZEREESBENT -
30 June 31 December
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
AA=+HR +ZA=1+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEZ) (&%)
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Within one year —&R 2,972 1,908
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZENF(BEEEMT) 2,225 34
5,197 1,942
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PATSIRARIMEE (R

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE = —+tF X A=+ HIL/NEA

20. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (CONTINUED) 20. K& HELH (&)

(b) Aslessee (b)

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to four years.

At 30 June 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due

EREBA

AEBERBEEEHELHHEHERS
THREYE - ZEMEMREL
HEHNF—Z2MF -

R-ZE—tFRA=1TH  ~&H
RIEI T 5 HABR fE T 2 A AT U AT

as follows: EHEMNRERENREEEE
BT :
30June 31 December
2017 2016
—E2—-tF —TRF
ANA=tHR +ZA=t+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REERZ) (=)
HKs’000 HK$'000
FET BT
Within one year —FA 6,292 5,426
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FEEFRF(RIEEEMF) 6,787 9,055
13,079 14,481
21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 21. BBEALRS
In addition to the transactions, arrangements and balances B EREREEMENER TS
detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had TR AERIN  AEBREIRNYHEIT T
the following material transactions with related parties during the GIEREEALTRS
period:
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: AEETEEEAEZMEHT -
For the six months ended 30 June
BEAA=tTHILEAEA
2017 2016
—2—+tF ZEAF
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEER) (RIQEZ)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRET T/87T
Short term employee benefits RHESET 6,310 6,377
Equity-settled share-based payment expense % # 45 & LARS {5 2 5 B =2 273 160
Post-employment benefits B2 12T 53 53
Total compensation paid to key management £ ZEHE A B 2 i€ @&
personnel 6,636 6,590
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Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE T —+F /S A=+ H1E/NEA

22. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial assets and liabilities reasonably approximated to
their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, trade payables and financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity and debt investments are based on
quoted market prices.

The fair value of an available-for-sale investment is based on
available market prices.

22. ;%H%IE’D\SFE&’ASFE%%&?E

RBERRGEER  AEEMBEER
BEZEEERENHESEMES

EREEDHEREMFRESEE B
HIRRITER - BFRESHRAREEE
B REe REMEKRFOR - BNESK
K~ BT AR A TR & e A RIE 2
BREsAFEREKEEMRS T8
BHRZETAZBIHAEIE -

MBEENABBZATENEZIAR
FERX 577 (GRS B ERR SN B AT
HTARZEEAR - THIHERRR
TIRAMERt A ¢

EHEEREHRE 2 R HERTS®
BISH -

—IEAMHERE 2 A FETIRTISE
RIS -
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22. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
B ERRMEE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE = —+tF X A=+ HIL/NEA

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

22. IR TEAFERAFESHRE
B(E)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 30 June 2017

AVEEHER
TRAETAREHGTAATEL B
H0%HE

BATENBZEE

R-ZFE-—tFEAA=1H

Fair value measurement using

DNYEFERANTEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
inactive observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
_ EB  BATER EATAEE
BEEE  BANE  BANA )
($18) (%258) (%3[8) @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FET FET
Available-for-sale investment: AHERE
Club membership debenture QHeRES - 1,880 = 1,880
Financial assets at fair value through XA FELBH AR
profit or loss: MBEE:
Listed equity investments EHRARE 10,193 - - 10,193
Debt investment EBRE 2,566 - - 2,566
12,759 1,880 - 14,639
As at 31 December 2016 R-ZFE—ANF+ZHA=1—H
Fair value measurement using
ATEFAERANTEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
R BRUER EXNIER
Ti5HE BAMR BAE
(E118) ($2)8) (£3E) @5t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FAT FBT
Available-for-sale investment: AHNERE
Club membership debenture 2feEEs - 1,880 = 1,880
Financial assets at fair value through ~ ZAFELEBGZARKZ
profit or loss: PHEE
Listed equity investments LA RE 9,490 = = 9,490
Debt investment BRHRE 2,531 = = 2,531
12,021 1,880 - 13,901
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Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE T —+F /S A=+ H1E/NEA

22. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

23

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value:

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
value as at 30 June 2017 and 31 December 2016.

During the period ended 30 June 2017, there were no transfers
of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (Year ended 31 December 2016: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group'’s principal financial instruments include pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to finance the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables, trade and other
payables, financial liabilities included in accruals, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, and available-for-sale investment,
which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, equity price risk
and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates

relates primarily to the Group’s cash at banks and time deposits with
floating interest rates.

22.

23.

MBIAAFERDFHESRR
B (&)

DNHESRREE)
BAVEBZAE

AEER - T—tFRA=TER=-ZF
—RNET A=+ RUEEFIRAF
B BEZMKRE -

BE_T—+tFRA=THILHH %
1EBEF2EFMENBEEENMBA
BERFEFEER  TEAFENES
ARBHEIB(BHE-_T—RF+A
=+—RIEFE &) -

MR EREE B R RBUER

AEBZIE2HMBTABRDEMRT
BFHRARBRERERREEE - ER
BTAZFERGEIAARE 2 EHR
BE-AEEEHEBERUBEERA
& WEKEZERALEERE  Re
R E M EAIR - BN E 5 R R Al
AR ~ AT AR SRR B R E -
BAFELBE AR EEERATH
HERE  WEMBEENABTIER
X2 EERES

AEBMBTAELEZ T ZRABRR/NEK
Rk - SR - EERR - BRAER
REERSEERR - EFESEHMIRF
BN AL E RSB SRR 2 BUR

R =E b
& B [ e T 45 B SR Eh T R 2 LR

TEERAEEFHNRITRBIIBNEX
AHRZRENEMERER
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Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE = —+tF X A=+ HIL/NEA

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 23. BiiEMEEEERBEK (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (continued) F 2= [ B (48

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TREVNEFMBHMEH BT TE 215
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held AT NEEZ R AN (B BT EF
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on KIFITHEBRTE RFRIETE) EH R

floating rate bank balances and time deposits). GIEA[REHIR B E) » BURIZE o
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax

Eghigm, BRB AT 32
(B4) 8 ORd)

HKS'000
FET

As at 30 June 2017 R=Z—tFxA=+H
Hong Kong dollar BIT (25) (112)
United States dollar =TT (25) (91)
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARE(TARK]D (25) (97)
Hong Kong dollar BT 25 112
United States dollar EViH 25 91
RMB AR 25 97
As at 30 June 2016 RZZE—XRFRA=TH
Hong Kong dollar BT (25) (223)
United States dollar X7 (25) (124)
RMB AR (25) (335)
Hong Kong dollar BIT 25 223
United States dollar ETT 25 124
RMB AR 25 335
There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained RAR B SEE RGN - S 7K £ B A% AN 48 4 (- {)
profits. -
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR MIE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE T —+F /S A=+ H1E/NEA

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVESAND 23. BiIiEMEEBEERBEEK (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
mainly arise from revenue generated and/or costs and expenses
incurred by operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets

S LB

FEEEHZSEERR - HEAREE
RERNLEER(ERAZEMY AL EEIA
HNEMEBRER 2 WA KR EE 7 A
A o

TREIEMBERMEHERTEZIE
AT AEERRERBEE R ZBRR
AaM(AEBEERRBEAFERE)
HARKERTEAIRRE) 2 GRIZE ©

and liabilities).
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rate before tax
ExEHA BB AR A
(TE&) #m, Omd)
% HKS$'000
FET
As at 30 June 2017 R-ZZB—tHA=1H
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT ARBRZE 5 35
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB i85 7T i AR B FHE (5) (35)
As at 30 June 2016 RZZE—RFRA=1H
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB BT ARBRZE 5 2,243
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB i 7T 7 A R FHE (5) (2,243)

There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained
profits.

BRORBE IR AN - B AR B AR A A (]

=271
%
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PATSIRARIMEE (R

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE = —+tF X A=+ HIL/NEA

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that most
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are to a certain
extent subject to certain credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored by the Group's management on
an ongoing basis.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, debt investment
and deposits and other receivables, mainly arises from default of
the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group primarily trades on credit terms with recognised
and creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty, by geographical region and by industry sector. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group had certain concentration
of credit risk as 49.6% (31 December 2016: 28.5%) of the total
trade and bills receivables of the Group were due from certain
departments/units of the Government of the HKSAR, the Group’s
largest customer.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are disclosed in
note 15 to the financial statements.

23. MIEMERE B EREEEK ()

FERR

AEBTRERAREERFZFE=T
BRERGRETRD - BRAKEZHK
R ABMOREEEGRRETRIZE
P EXREE ERERBETEERX
BFR TADEE - I BlESRZ
ARE A EEETE EFFEER -

AEBHEMMKEE - BROEMRT
TR BERFRARNSEE  BHKRE
AEZEE REMEWRIRZ EERRE
EREXSHHTFEDY  ME=ERES
RUtETAZ REE -

HRAREIRER A MEEREZH
HREREGRRETR S HEFEM

=
on °

EESETEBRBERE HFHRibEX
RITED DAL TR - RREHHLEHE
H BRAEERKE SRR RERE
B@mEPE4.6%( —_E—~F+_-A
=+—H :285%) BEWEBFRIITIR
ERF(AEBRARRL)E T3,/ &8
MZRE HAEEAT —EEEES
[BLfg o
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

BATS R ML (AE)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE T —+F /S A=+ H1E/NEA

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

23. BIERERE R ERBEK(E)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - listed equity
investments in Hong Kong (note 16) as at 30 June 2017 and 31
December 2016. The Group'’s listed equity investments are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and are valued at quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the Group’s listed equity investments,
with all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period.

IRASE % E B

B A (B 1% L 2 48 A B R 45 UM {8 B
EFBEIBLEREATSF 2 AFE
Rz R - AEBEZBRAERRERIR
RE_ZE—tFRA=+TAR-ZE—X
F+_A=+—HARFBEIBARATE
REBEAARZHMBEE-BBLHEA
K& (MiE16) < ARIRARE - NEE
ZETBEARERBEEBAXZMER
RAELE™M - RBEHREEEBIRTH SR
BFHE -

TREINEFBEMES G TE B
MTRAFHEMBBEZER - LWERE
BRERE  AEBE EMRARENRES
HEEERB 2 A FETEZ8)10%5 - 1
RAIEE 2 BURIEE -

Carrying Increase/

amount (decrease)

of equity in profit

investments before tax

BARBREZ RRBE AT R

FREE #m, CRd)

HKS’000 HKS'000

FHET FHET
As at 30 June 2017 R=Z—t&HXHA=1+H
Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: EEAE LM ZBRARE :

- Held-for-trading —BIEEE 10,193 1,019

As at 31 December 2016 RZE—ARF+ZA=1+—H

Equity investments listed in Hong Kong: BB LT ZBRAEE

- Held-for-trading —HEEE 9,490 949

There is no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained

profits.

B R B g RIS -

B/ 48R
mE e
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23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

PATSIRARIMEE (R

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE = —+tF X A=+ HIL/NEA

The Group’s objective is to ensure there are adequate funds to
meet its contractual payments for financial liabilities in the short
and long term. In the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank balances, and
time deposits deemed adequate by management to finance the
Group'’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. Cash flows of the Group are closely monitored by senior

management on an ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group'’s financial liabilities at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

23. MIEMERE B EREEEK ()

RBETERE

AEBZ BERBERERFENE S IAE
NEEHARERZBBEABEEHOMRK -
EERBETARE  AEEERNE
SEREERARMRHASEZENRS
Re RRITESKLERER - WRIER
RBERBNBDERITE SREEE
FEZYERAEEZRERE -

R EHEEER  AEEREBEEOR
FTRNFAAE B ARG BHBE RN
T

As at 30 June 2017 R=-ZE—t&FXA=1H
Lessthan  3tolessthan
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
RERER HPRZEA ZE+=@ARK #@st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Trade payables FENE SIRN 17,260 305 360 17,925
Other payables HipfER30a - 27,328 - 27,328
Financial liabilities included in STABRFEZ
accruals BKatE - 3,180 = 3,180
Guarantees given to banks for HAREAE  ETEHNE
performance bonds/guarantees HEARE /ERMA
issued in relation to certain contracts |ITRA 2 R
undertaken by the Group 20,082 - - 20,082
37,342 30,813 360 68,515
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
SRR MIE(E)

Six months ended 30 June 2017 HZE T —+F /S A=+ H1E/NEA

23.

24.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2016

23. BIERERE R ERBEK(E)

REBE = E k()

RZE—ARF+-A=+—H

Less than 3 to less than
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
REKER PH=EA =ZE+-@AR @t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET
Trade payables [ENESEN 19,084 1,222 940 21,246
Other payables HERF0E - 42,220 - 42,220
Financial liabilities included in AR
accruals HBER - 4,208 - 4,208
Guarantees given to banks for RASERE  ETALE
performance bonds/guarantees HELIRE R TA
issued in relation to certain contracts RITHRA 2 R
undertaken by the Group 19,682 - - 19,682
38,766 47,650 940 87,356
Capital management BEAREE

The primary objectives of the Group'’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the period ended
30 June 2017 and year ended 31 December 2016.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’
equity.

APPROVAL OF THE INTERIM FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The interim financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 14 August 2017.

24.

AEREAEE 2T ZANITRRER
EERBELEZRNABFRIEZERL
o UXFHEEB R ASBRRETREANE
=0
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BAEHEE « KRB UBBHELR
RREZ RS - AREREA AR
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Other Information
Hip &R

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2017, the interests of the directors in the share capital
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

ESRBROKREBRO 2 EERXR

R-FB—tHFRNA=1TH SEFRAAF
NEBBEE (EERBHEREGHRD(E5
K EAEARDI ) FEXVER) 2 B & AR R R AD o
BARRBAREE S M E GHIF352FRE
FEZELMPMREIRE LMETAE
FETEFRINEETARTHEARF]
KB Pz HESRIA T

FAREBRZHER

Number of shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

FiEROBE - SoRERNEE

Percentage

of the

Directly Through Company'’s

beneficially controlled issued

owned corporation Total share capital

1AL H

Notes HiZ prigicl 2EITRA

Name of director EEgE HiaF BEREE ZEHELH P Bl
Ng Cheung Shing REB (@) 2,634,000 110,000,000 112,634,000 46.12
Cheung Wai Lam RIERR 750,000 - 750,000 0.31
Leung King San, Sunny 2257 1,010,000 - 1,010,000 0.41
Ng Kwok Keung R 58 270,000 - 270,000 0.11
4,664,000 110,000,000 114,664,000 46.95
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Other Information (continued)

Hitr &R (&)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (CONTINUED)

Long positions in shares of an associated corporation:

%ﬂ%mﬂﬁﬁ&mﬁﬁﬂiﬁZE%‘é&‘}ﬁé%
IIE

R—BEBEERD 2HR -

Percentage

Number of shares of the

LR E associated

Name of Relationship Directly Through  corporation’s

associated with the Class of beneficially controlled issued shares

Name of director corporation Company shares owned  corporation capital
AR E

EE BB  ERTRE

B HEEE A BADNR ZBR R BERfE  ZEHLF Bt
Ng Cheung Shing Computer And Company's subsidiary ~ Non-voting deferred 1,750,000 3,250,000 N/A
REB Technologies ARAIZHBLRR EBINTREL (note FiI5E(b) NEA

International Limited

R RS AR LA
Notes:

(@)  The 110,000,000 shares were held by Chao Lien Technologies Limited (“Chao
Lien”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of C.S. (BVI) Limited. Mr. Ng Cheung Shing
was entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the
voting power at general meetings of C.S. (BVI) Limited, which in turn was
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting
power at general meetings of Chao Lien. Accordingly, Mr. Ng Cheung Shing
was deemed, under the SFO, to be interested in all shares held by Chao Lien.

(b)  The 3,250,000 non-voting deferred shares were held by Chao Lien.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2017, none of the directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

(@) CS.(BVI) LimitedZ 2 & W B R RBHEEE
R AR (T8 )+ 4 110,000,000 8% f% 1 °
SRR A B ERCS. (BVI) Limited 2 A% 5 K
e LITFERREATE =D AT RE
e 1M C.S. (BVI) Limited BI| A # A B B A% K
& HITESEETE= D2 A ERE
o A REBEFLHERBEEN  RREBEL
SRR ARNEHIT A 2B R HEE#

ﬁ_ﬁ_o

(b) 3,250,000 % 8 1% S M IR AE AR 17 T FR (5 Bt 4
ﬁ o

BREXEBEEN R_FT—LFRA=T
B MEEENAQFNEERREEER
BB T - BERERFLBERK
%352 A Taosk - IMRBLENHEITAES
ETRFXZHNBEETRISTHEARARE R
B P2 SR SOR R

Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited | Interim Report 2017



Other Information (continued)

Hitt &R (&)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections “Share option scheme” and “Restricted
share award scheme” below, at no time during the period were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for
the primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

No share option of the Company was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the period.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme (the “Award
Scheme”) on 22 May 2008 and renewed the Award Scheme on 31 May
2017. Pursuant to the Award Scheme, shares of the Company (the
“Awarded Shares”) are granted to eligible employees (including directors)
of the Group until 31 May 2027. The Company shall also pay cash to the
appointed trustee company for its acquisition and holding upon trust
of the Awarded Shares for the benefit of these employees and directors.
The Awarded Shares will then be transferred to these employees and
directors upon vesting. The aggregate number of shares to be awarded
under the Award Scheme throughout its duration shall not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time. At all times,
the overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
any other incentive or share option schemes and under the Renewed
Award Scheme must not exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time.

Details of the Award Scheme and the shares awarded thereunder are set
out in the Annual Report 2016.

—E RS | RSB ARA
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Other Information (continued)

Hitr &R (&)

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The following table illustrates the number and movements of the
Awarded Shares under the Award Scheme during the period ended 30
June 2017.

Number of Unvested Awarded Shares

BRI RRBE 8 (&)

TREJIBE T —EFRA=1THILHE
PR EEEN IR B A I < BB R H B ) -

ABREBRAHE
Transfer Weighted
At in/ (out) Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category 1 January during the during the during the 30June Vesting periodof  fair value
of participant 2017 period period period 2017 Award date Awarded Shares  per share
SRENE RZB-tF Hn R=B-tf BRmE
il kbl -A-B BA/(BE) HAEHRE  BRERK  RA=tR RUXBAM ERROERE THOVE
HKS
A1
Directors
£
Cheung Wai Lam 200,000 - - - 200,000 14 January 2014 31 December 2014 1.88
RER “T-MmE-ATMA to 31 December 2018
“T-WET-A=1-H
“E-\E+ZA=t-H
Cheung Wai Lam 250,000 - - - 250,000 14 October 2016 30 September 2017 243
KER ZENETATER to 30 September 2021
“E-rEAR=TH
E_E_-FAR=TH
Ng Kwok Keung 100,000 - (50,000) - 50,000 28 March 2013 30 April 2014 145
REIR i = to 30 April 2018
“E3-NEMA=TH
E25-/\FRA=TH
Ng Kwok Keung 96,000 - (24,000) - 72,000 4 May 2015 30 April 2016 262
REIR “Z-REnANA to 30 April 2020
“E3-FmA=TH
S TFNA=TA
646,000 - (74000) - 572,000
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Other Information (continued)

Hitt &Rl (&)
RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME (CONTINUED) BIRFIMR 10 2R BT 8 (&)
Number of Unvested Awarded Shares
AEREBROHE
Transfer Weighted
At in/ (out) Vested Forfeited At average
Name of category 1January during the during the during the 30June Vesting periodof  fair value
of participant 2017 period period period 2017 Award date Awarded Shares  per share
SRENE R=B-t% B R=B-tf ShmE
il Ebil -A-B BA/(BE) HAERE  BRERK  AAStR RhHERHAS ERROSRSE THAVE
HKS
AT
Other employees
EftES
In aggregate 160,000 - (80,000) - 80,000 28 March 2013 30 April 2014 145
it “Z-zF to 30 April 2018
)zl AN “E-MEMA=TH
223 \EMA=TA
In aggregate 40,000 - - - 40,000 12 August 2013 30 September 2014 1.58
et -5-zZ% to 30 September 2018
NATZH “E-MEAR=TH
E_F-\fAA=TH
In aggregate 196,000 - (49,000) (30,000) 117,000 4May 2015 30 April 2016 262
&t —Z-1F t0 30 April 2020
hAMA “E-EMA=TH
E_R_TEMA=TA
Inaggregate 120,000 - - - 120,000 14 October 2016 30 September 2017 2483
& ZEF to 30 September 2021
TATER Tt ENA=TH
EZRENA=HA
1,162,000 - (203,000) (30,000) 929,000
—TFRPRE | MM EREEARAF




Other Information (continued)

Hitr &R (&)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2017, the following interests of more than 5% of the issued
share capital and share options of the Company were recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRREMALRRG RBBER

3z

RZZE—tFXNA=1TH U TRARAA
OB ERIBE 75 M B 1R 5 336 (R R E 7
BEZRGEECMAERAR D EITRALE

R AEES% A 2 R

Long positions: HRE
Percentage
of the
Number of Company's Number
ordinary issued share of share
Name of shareholder of the Company Notes  Capacity and nature of interest shares held capital options held
NG|
BRTRE Fiits
ERRARREE £ it BoRERMEE FisEER#A BAK BREZE
Chao Lien Technologies Limited (@)  Directly beneficially owned 110,000,000 45.05 -
BRI AR AR EREHEAR
C.S. (BVI) Limited (@  Through a controlled corporation 110,000,000 45.05 -
i3 Gl lYNG]
Puttney Investments Limited (“PIL") (b)  Directly beneficially owned 29,148,938 11.94 -
EREHEAR
Hutchison International Limited ("HIL") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 -
g Gl lYNG]
Hutchison Whampoa Limited ("HWL") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 -
M EHERAR([FE]) g Gl iYNG]
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited ("CKH") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 -
RIEE(ER)ERARA(RE]) g Gl ilyNG]
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CKHH") (b)  Through a controlled corporation 29,148,938 11.94 -
RINCEEARAR(RM]) g Cle i NG]
Hui Yau Man Directly beneficially owned 26,782,000 1097 -
EiE1I)6 EREHHEAR
Webb David Michael Directly beneficially owned 3,540,000 145 -
EREHnEAR
(c)  Through a controlled corporation 8,740,000 3.58 -

ez VNG
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Other Information (continued)

Hitt &R (&)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

Long positions : (continued)

Notes:

(@)  The interest was also disclosed as an interest of Mr. Ng Cheung Shing in the
section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying
shares” of this report.

(b)  PIL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HIL, which in turn is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of HWL. CKH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CKHH and
subsidiaries of CKH are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of more
than one-third of the voting power at the general meetings of HWL. By virtue
of the SFO, CKHH, CKH, HWL and HIL were deemed to be interested in the
29,148,938 shares of the Company held by PIL.

(c) The 8,740,000 shares were held by Preferable Situation Assets Limited
(“PSAL"). PSAL was 100% directly owned by Mr. Webb David Michael and
accordingly, Mr. Webb David Michael is deemed to be interested in the said
shares held by PSAL.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2017, no person, other than the
directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the Section
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
under Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the reporting period.

FERRREMALRRG REBER
10z s ()

@ FZERTNAREIEERRD RABRERG 2
Bm kAR —HARBRARBEREZE

Sz
ZS o
fm

(b) PILTIHILZ ZEMB AR HLAIAM=E 22
BB LR - REARMZZ2EMBAR -
MEEZWBARARRMEZRIRE L
BAITENEFBE=D — R EHE - IRRE
EREEES - BN - RE - FE RHILES
YERPILFTH529,148,938 A8 A A A1 IR0 AR HE A 1

><
m °©

() 8,740,000 i% 1% 19 M Preferable Situation Assets
Limited ([ PSAL J) 5B ° PSAL F5 Webb David
Michael 5t A B 2 E04Eas - Et © Webb
David Michael 5t 4 # 1R {EFAPSALIE B 2 it
B EER -

BREXHEEIN RZF—LFRA=T
B BREESHN EXEEREMD RAHEK
2R SORR | — B 2 RRRERS - B
EAIATRAR R BB F ELR
B 5 M EE RIS 3361678 T A ik 2 ik
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Other Information (continued)

Hitr &R (&)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis on the
principles of integrity, transparency and accountability. The board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) believes that good corporate
governance is essential to the success of the Company and to the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board opined that the Company has complied with the code
provision set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG code”) as
stipulated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) during the
reporting period.

The Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that its corporate governance practices are similar to those
provided in the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the directors. Based on specific enquiry of the Company’s
directors, the directors confirmed and declared that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the six
months ended 30 June 2017.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial reporting
process and internal controls. The audit committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors of the Company. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the period ended 30 June 2017 with management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed risk
management and internal controls and financial reporting matters
related to the preparation of the unaudited interim financial information
for the six months ended 30 June 2017.
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